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121I11I) STATES
NUCLEAR REGUIATORY CEtEISSION

In the Matter ot' )
)

CTI, Inc. ) Dtcket No. 15000004
Mart.inez, California ) EA 92-127

ORDFR IMPOSING CIVIL 10NETARY PE2iALTY

I

CTI, Imorporated (CTI or Licensee) is the holder of a general license issued

by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Ctxunission (Mt.') pursuant to 10 CFR 150.20.

The general license authorizes CTI to perform radiograrkly in areas under

Federal jurisdiction in accordance with the conditions specified in its State

of California License No. 2851-07 and 10 CFR 150.20(b) .

II

An inspdion of the Licensee's activities was corducted on June 16 and

July 1-2, 1992. The results of this inspection irdicated that the Licensee

had not conducted its activities in full canpliance with IE rcquirements. A

written Notice of Violation and Proposed Inposition of Civil Penalties

(flotice) was served upon the Licensee by letter dated Septcuter 2,1992. The

Notice states the rature of the violations, the provisions of the NRC's

requirements that CTI violated, and the amount of the civil penalties proposed

for the violations. CI". resporded to the Notice in a letter dated October 6,

1992.

In its resp:nse, the Licensee admits two violations of NRC requiremmts, one

for fa11ure to use separate personne) alarm ratemeters with a preset clarm of '
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500 rrR/hr, and the secord for failure to post a high radiation area durity

radiography operations. The Licensee questions the validity of a t".ird~

violation for failure to corduct canplete circumferential radiation surveys of
,

an exposure device. The Licensee admits that a dcronstration survey by its

radiographer did not mmply with the rcquirement for camplete circumferential

surveys, bat questioned whether the radiographer's survty ard statenents to

the inspector were representative of actual survey practim. CPI subnits.the
,

following arguments in protesting the severity level and amount of civil

pemities proposed:

|

1. CTI que.stions the NRC's application of the examples in Dt'pplement I

(Reactor Operations), 4 A C, 10 CFR Part 2, to Violations I.A.

ard I.D. in the Notice.

2. CTI objects to NRC's characterizaticn of Violations I.A and I.B as

indicatirq CrI's lack of attention or careless . ass tnward licensed
.

responsibilities.
'

3. CPI asserts that it interded to operate its radiography program in a

safe unnner ard to comply with all State and Federal rcerulations,

i T!n Licensee clairs this <as demonstrated by its candor ard

iotegrity durity the NRC inspection, and by its performnoa, based

on past inspections corducted by the State of California, which had

indicated no significant safety problems to warrant civil penalties

of the mgaittde asWM by NRC. CPI relies upon a letter dated

Septenber 8,1992, from Mr. Rigar Bailey, Chief of the California.
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Radiologic Health Branch, to the IEC OffiT of State Prcgrems, in
,

support of-its position that the severity cf violations does not-

nerit the ancunt of civil pemities inposed.

III

After consideration of the Licensee's response and the statenents of fact,

eg.,lanation, ard letter of protest contained thereir the NRC staff has

determined, as se'c forth in the ApTndix to this Order, that the violations

occurred as stated and that the pemities proposed fer the Diolation

desigmtad in the Notice should be iwd.

IV

.

+

In view of the foregoing and purstent to Section 234 of the Atanic Energy Act

of 1954, as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 2282, And 10 CFR 2.205, IT IS HEREBY

ORDERED IMAT:
.

CTI, Inc., pay civil pemlties in the arount of $12,500 within 30 days of

the date of this Order, by chede, draft, money order, or ele.hc

transfer, payable to the Treasurer of the United States and mailed to the

Director, Office of Enforcenent, U..c Nuclear Regulatory Ccranission,

ATIN: Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555.

The Licensee may request a hearing within 30 days of the date of this order.

A request for a hearity should be clearly marked as a " Request for an

,
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Enforcenent Hearing" ard shM1 be addressed to the Director, Office of

Enformmnt, d.S. Nuclear Regulatory Ccrrtission, ATD1: Documnt Control Desk,

Washirgton, D.C. 20555. Copies also shall be sent to the Assistant General

Counscl for Hearings we Enforcement at the sam address and the Fagional

Administrator, !!(C Region V,1.450 Maria Tane, Walnut Creek, California, 94596.

If a hearing is requested, the Ccmission will issue an Order designatiry the

tine ard place of the hearirg. If CTI falls to request a hearirs within 30

days of the date of this Order, the provisions of this Order shall be

efrective withou'. further proceedirgs. If paymnt has not been mde by that

tane, the matter my Le referred to the Attorney General for collection.

In the event the Licensee requests a heariJg as providai above, the issues to

to considered at such hearity shall be:
,

4-
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(a) whether tho Licensee vat, in violation of the Wt for complete

i circumferential sutveys of the exposure device, and

,
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(b) whether, on the hsis of such violation and the additional violations t.c:

forth in the Notice of Violation tiut the Licensee admitted, this Order should

be sustained.

FOR 71E U.S. NUCLEAR RD2]IATORY CUMIS'11Cri

) $$/ --

L. ,J.

ty Dcecutly r for
' I clear Materiu ty, Saf% cards

and Operatiors Support -

Datni at Rockville, Maryland
this 1st day of December 1992

,
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APPDIDIX TO ORDER IN T ING CIVIL PENALTIES

on Septerbar 2,1992, a Notim of Violation ard Progreed Inposition of Civil
Penalties (Notice) was issucd for violations identified during an NRC
inspection. CTI, Inc. (CPI) resporded to the Notice on October 6, 1992 in a
" Reply to a Notice of Violation.. 1 (Reply .

In its reply, CTI c M ts two violations, one for failure to use requirol
personnel alam rucemeters and another for failure to post a high radiation
area, queetions the violation for failure to perfom a full ciremnferential
survey of the exposure devi , ard protests the severity level ard magnitude
of the civil penalties proposcd. 1he NRC's evaluation ard conclusion
regarding the Licensee's response is as follows:'

Restatement of Violation I.A.

10 CFR 34 3(a) and (f) require, jn part, that the licensee not permit any
individuF co act as a radiographer or a radicgrapher's assistant unless, at
all timer, durity radiographic operations, the irdividual wears an alarm
ratemeter set to give an alam signal at a preset dose rate of 500 rR/hr.

Contrary to the above, on June 15-16, 1992, at Moffett Field, Califcrnia,
licensee radiographers did not wear alam ratameters set ?:o give an alarm at a
preset dose rate of 500 mR/hr while conluctirg radiographic operations. ,

Sunmary of the Licensee's Response to h olation I.A.

C"I admits that the use of alarmiIn survey mters set at d ard 80 mR/hr during
licensed radiography did not cmply with the requirement in 10 CFR 34.33(f)(2)
for alarmiry ratemeters set at 500 mR/hr. CTI states that it had interdad to
caply with 10 CFR 34.33(a), by assignirg to each wrson, personnel munitoring
rquipment consistirg of a survey alarm metAr with a belt clip, a direct
reading pocket dosimeter and a film badge.

NRC Evaluation of the Licensee's Response to Violatipn I.A.

The Licensee admits the violation for usiry personnel alarm rate meters
without a preset alarm of 500 mR/hr. Also, CTI's use of survey rneters with a
inilt-in audible alam did not ccrply with 10 CFR 34.33(a) . " Survey meters
with audible alarms do not provide the same redundancy that separate alam

I ratemeters do, prirarily because the alam is connected to the survey meter
j output and if the survey meter fails, so does the audible alarm." Statenents

of ConsMeration, Safety Requirements fcr Industrial Radiographic Equipment,
55 fe_deral hemister 843, 850 (January 10, 1990).

Festatement of Violation I.B.'

|-
l 10 CFR 34.43(b) requires, in part, the licensee to perform a survey with a

calibrated ard operable radiation survey instrument after each radiographic
egosure to determine that the sealed source has been returned to i.tr shielded
position. The survey rust incitde the entire circumfererce of the radio-

,

! graohic e osure device ard any source guide tube.
|
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Contrary to the above, on June 16, 1992, at Moffett Field, California, a
licensee radiogra$ er did not perform an adequata survey after each radier-
graphic exposure to determine that the scaled source has been returned to its
shieldcd position, in that the survey did not include the entire circumference
of tF radicgraphic exposure dwice.

Violations A and B above constitute a deverity Invel III problem (Supplements
IV ard VI) . Cumulative Civil Penalty - $5,000 wcui equally between the
two violations.

Su:merv of the Licensee's Response to Violation I.B.

CTI states that the violation ". . . is not based on direct observation but _

rather on observation of a requested demonstration survey and subcequent
questioning by the NRC inspector." Although the Licensee agrees that the
survey as demonstrated by the radiographer did not fully comply with 10 CFR
34.43(b), CTI questions the violation's validity by raising the possibility

'

that the demonstration survey and statements rede by the radiographer to the
in pector "... reflect a response to a perceived intimidating interrogation
rather than his actual practice." W e Licensee supports its concnision by
stating that prior and subsquent CTI field aulits demonstrated that the o

radiographer routinely perfonts surveys in full acrplianm with 10 CFR
34.43(b).

NRC Evaluation of the Licensee's Rerponse to Violation I.p2

NRC disaarecs with CTI's suggestion that no violation may have occurred.
Immediately fo11cuirx3 temination of CTI's operations at the job site, the
inspector specifically asked the radiographer to denonstrate with a survey
meter how he had corductcd his survey of the exposure device after the two
previous source exposures. 'Ibe radiographer's sinulated survey ircluded only
the left side and front of the expcuure device near the source tube connector. _

"hc inspector then questioned tha radicgrapher to detennine if the survey as
demonstrated was the r-eme as those he had just corduded follcuing the two
previous source exposures. 'Ihe radicgrapher replied that the surveys were the
sane and typical of those hn ruitinely conducts during radiagrephy. 'Ihe
radiographer indicated his desire to be truthful, while admitting that the
surveys he routinely conducted were " shortcuts" to full circumfererce surveys
but were adquate to detect an unshielded scurce, hten the radiogra@er was
questioned again by the inspector two weeks later at CTI's office, the
radiographer confirmed that he had not perfomed the required full
circumference surveys.

Restatement of Violation I.C2

10 CFR 34.42 requires, notwithstartling any provision in 10 CFR 20.204(c), that
areas in which radiograpny is being perfontro be cor.spicuously posted as
required by 10 CFR 20.203(c)(1) .

10 CCR 20.203(c)(1) requires that each high radiation area be conspicucusly
posted with a sign or signs bearing the radiation caution cymbol ard the surds
" CAUTION HIGH RADIATION AREA."

1
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Contrary to the above, on June 16, 1992, at Moffett Field, California, the
li eseo did not post the high radiation area in which intastrial radiography
was beirg performod.

This is a severity Invel III violation ; supplements IV ard VI).
Civil Penalty - $7,500.

Sumary of the Licensee's Response to Violation I.C.

Cri admits that the high radiation area was not poeted as rcquired tut argues
that CPI radiographers had exercised other radiation s'fe k controls over the
job site, duisstratiry that the failure to post the hii,- .adiation area was
not an " intentional or prenaditated disregard" for pm 4 requirem2nts. CTI
states that these actions included postirg and monitorirg the perimeter of the
mntrolled area, mnstant visual surveillance of the ramation area ard high
radiation area, ard advance notice to MRC and to site personnel of
radiographic operations ard other actions.

FRC Evaluation of the Licensee's Resnonse to Violr,rgu.g,

The Licensee admits not postiry the high radiation area as reqaired by 10 CFR
20.203(c) (1) ard 10 CFR 34.42. The actions cited by CPI as examples of its
controls to prevent access to the radiaticn and high radiation areas are
required by NRC in addition to, and not as a sutstitute for, the separate
requirement to pmt the high radiation area. Such pestirq was especially
r-ary in this case because of the presence of other non-radiography
contractor personnel inside the posted restricted area boundary ard their
potential acx:ess to the high radiation area while the radioactive sourm was
eXPCsed-

The NRC labelled this violation as willful based <m the radiographer's
careless disregard for NRC requirements. There was no NRC conclusica of an
intentional or premeditated violation. The Licersee has provided no basis to-
revise this conclusion. Both CPI radiographers at the site admitted their
decision to continue with radicgraphy without postirg the high radiation area
after they fourd high radiation area s'arnirg signs miming frcra the CrI truck.
The radiogra;ters acknowlecked that they were aware of the requirement for,J
ard normally post, such signs but added that visual surveillance and the
posting of the fenced restricted area toundary with radiation area warnirg
signs was sufficient. The decision by the radicgrap not to post ard
instead to rely on surveillan and lesser postirg acticra constiteted 'a
careless disregard for NRC posting rcquirements.

Summary of Licensee's Recuest for Mitigatim

Althngh CII does not specifically request remission or mitigation of the
civil penalties proposed, it protests the severity level and cmount of the
penalties with the following arguments:'

1. CTI questions the NRC's application of 10 CFR Part 2, Aapendix C,
Supplement I (Reactor Operation), to Violations I.A. and I.B.

t

,
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2. CTI objects to NRC's characterization of Violations I.A ard I.B based on
10 CFL Part 2, Appendix C, Supplements IV ard VI, as a "potentially
significant lack of attention or carelessness tcutti licensed
responsibilities." The Licensee acknculedges adtthtive problems
with J.ocumentation in its radiation safety supcun tut maintains that
such problems ard sutsequent corrective actions did not constitute
carelessness truard licensed responsibilities.

3. CTI asserts a villiLsess to operate its radiography prug<un Q a safe
manner ard to comply with all State and Federal regulations. The
Licenseo clairs that this intent was demonstrated by its ( rder mi
integrity during the current NRC inspection and in past inspections
corducted by the State of California, which had indicated no significant
safety problems that would warrant civil penalties of the magnitude
assessed by NRC. CTI relies upon a letter dated Septerber 8,1992, frcn
Mr. Edgar Bailey, Chief of the California Radiologic Health Branch, to
the NRC Office of State Programs, in support of its position that the
severity of violations does n e merit the an Jnt of civil penalties
imposed.

FRC EvaluaLion of Licensee's Reauest for Miticration

imC addresas CTI's arguments in the order presented above.

1. The reference in Section I of the Notice to Supplement I tras a
typographical errer and was interded to refererce Supplement IV (Health
Physics). No mitigation is warranted based on this error.

2. NRC disagrees with CTI's claim that Violations I.A ard I.B Aid not.
' -enresent a significant lack of attention or carelessness toward licensed

responsibilities. Most, if not all, of the 1&C-identified violations
could have been prevented had Licensee managemnt devotal sufficient
cttention and etfort to its program to ensure compliance with NRC ard
State license requirements. Deficiercies in the licensed prupaun were
kncun at the management level by ear 2y 1992. When the Radiation Safety
Officer (RSO) terminated employrent, a new RSO was designated, but other!

| duties prevented him frco making the needed achinistrative-inprovements.
! Conscquently, the licensed orogram lacksi acicquate oversight, ccepliance

with program requirements was delayed, ard the prtgram continued to
deteriorate until the NRC inspection.

|

The three violations were assessed civil penalties 11. accordance with the
NRC's Policy ard Procedure for EnforTnent Actions,10 CFR Part 2,
Appe: dix C (57 Ftderal Reaister 5791, February 18, 1992) (Enforcement

| Policy). The failures to perform a proper radiation survey ard to wear
prcper personnel monitorirg devices, as required by 10 CFR Part 34, would

|_ normally have been classified as separate Seve.rity level III Violations
| with separate civil penalties in accordance with the Enforcement Policy
| (Supplement IV, Dcnple C.4 ard Supplement VI, Exarple C.8) . Hcuever, in

this instance, tha NRC did not consider that the safety significarce of
I the violations warranted separate penalties. Accordirgly, two violations
| were cx:stbined as a Severity Level III problem, as permitted by Sectio 1
|
, .

I
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IV.A of the Enforoament Policy, because they were toth caused by a lack
of adequate attention or carelessness tcward licensed responsibilities on
the part of CI'I managenent ard the radic,rapher. 'pecifically, CTI
management was aware of the rcquirenents for alarm rate meters, had
purchased the instruments, oculd not locate them for the job, and yet
made the decision to conduct the radiography without cquipnent that fully
satisficd IRC rcquircrents. Similarly, the radiographer acknowledged
that he had been trained on, ard had knculedge of, the iequired survey
techniques, yet he indicated that he typically did not perform them as
specifically rcquired by the ImC. Collectively, these decisions
represent a significant regulatory corvrrn because we cannot accept
decisions by a Licensee or its perrainel to employ lesser safety
precautions as an acqtable alternative to canpliance witn the IEC
requirerents.

The violation involvirg the failure to post a high radiation area was i

escalated from a Severity level IV to a Eeverity level III violation, in
accordance with Section IV.C. of the Enfc.rcement Policy, M Nse the CI'I
radiogrt.Aers willfully violated the IGC requirement for pwtirq
(careless disregard beirg a form of willfulness) .

3. IRC recognizes the Licenses s candor and cocperation during the
inspection. S.e IRC relics upon, ard expects, licensees to be accurate
and forthright in prmMing information to the NPC to ensure that
licensed materials c wt ordanger public heQth ard safety. Although
CI7 expresses its intent ard strong desire to operate in a safe manner
and to comply with imC regulatory and license requirements, such intent
ard desire do rot provide a basis urder the Enforcenent Policy for
mitigatirq a civil penalty or for reducirg the severity level of a
violation. Instead, the Enforocment Policy provides for escalation of
the severity 12 vel of a violation which is willful, either because of
deliberateness or careless disregard (Section IV.C). IEC's reviu of the
results of inspections of C1'I by the State of California during the past
5 years irdicates that several significant violations had been identified
and that CI'I's overall performance was to better than average,
nirthermore, the independent audit contracted by CTI follcuiry the IRC
inspecti,.n, and incluoed as an attactment to the Licensee's October 6,
1992 letter, disclosed several radiation safety program deficiencies
resulting fran the lack of adequate attention to licensed
respcrisibilities. The letter frczn the State of California does not
address the application of the IEC Enforcement Poli y to this enforcercent
action ror provide a basis for mitigation of the civil penalties for the
violaticr9. The IGC Enforcement Policy applies to licensees performing
hetivities in Imc jurisdiction. 10C does rot agree with the observations
concerniry reverity levels.

IRQ Conclusico

The 1&C has concltded that the violations oo;urtui as stated ard that neither !

an adequate basis for a reduction in the severity level nor for mitigation of
the civil penalties was provided by CTI, Inc. Ocnsequently, the proposed
civil penalties in the amount of $12,500 should be irposed.

!,
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